
 

 
 

        

Witherle Woods Preserve History 
 Castine, Maine 

 

Overview  
 

The Witherle Woods Preserve encompasses 183 acres 

(originally four separate tracts) owned and managed by Maine 

Coast Heritage Trust, a nonprofit statewide land conservation 

organization. For two centuries between 1613 and 1815, this 

high promontory where the Penobscot and Bagaduce rivers join 

Penobscot Bay was one of the worldôs most contested tracts of 

land. The Town of Castine, in which it lies, changed hands 18 

times during more than two centuries in which European forces 

vied for its control. They saw the peninsula as vital for 

commerce, offering ready access to a deep and sheltered harbor 

and to lumber production along the Penobscot River. 

 

Visitors today can enjoy a trail network on the Preserve that has 

been in continuous use for nearly 200 years (first serving as 

artillery roads in the War of 1812). The preserve landscape is 

continually evolving, responding both to forces of nature and 

human actions. A walk through Witherle Woods reveals 

glimpses of its complex history and evolving ecologyðas 

aging forests give way to new plant communities that attract an 

ever-changing mix of species. 

  

Geology 
 

A brittle, metamorphosed volcanic rock known as the Castine formation underlies much of the 

property and it is clearly visible at Blockhouse Point and along the Penobscot River shoreline. 

Overlying this bedrock is glacial till that dates back to the Pleistocene Era (which ended roughly 

12,000 years ago).  

 

The last Ice Age (at its most extensive about 20,000 years ago) had a profound effect on the 

landscape of the Penobscot Bay region. When the ice first retreated, the water levels were markedly 

lower than today and islands like Vinalhaven and Matinicus were simply mountainous parts of the 

mainland. A rise in sea level brought the bay back up to the shores of Castine and left only the 

mountaintops of the flooded regions still visible as islands. There are a few prominent, rounded 

glacial erratics (large boulders carried and deposited by the glacier) on the property, the best-known 

being Traskôs Rock along the western shoreline. A single, small pond, near the height of land where 

the town reservoir is, may be either a kettle pond (from the last Ice Age), a borrow pit (excavated by 

humans), or a farm pond. The stone walls visible in parts of the preserve date back to the landôs 

early agricultural use (and appeared on a property survey in 1785). 



 

 
 

A Contested Site 
 

Before colonists began settling the Castine area early in the 1760s, Native Americans had enjoyed 

the regionôs rich resources for thousands of years. Archaeologists have identified finds from 

prehistoric Native Americans at the height of land known as Witherle Hill . Generations of Abanaki 

Indians camped during summers on this high promontory, eating and drying abundant fish from 

what they called ñMajabigwaduceò (large tideway river).  

 

By the 1600s, the peninsulaôs strategic 

location and rich resources made it a 

pawn in repeated skirmishes among 

European powers. In the century 

following 1613, control of the land 

bounced back and forth between French 

and British forces a half-dozen times, 

remaining in British control after the 

Treaty of Utrecht in 1713. 

 

In June 1779, 700 British troops began to fortify the peninsula and build Fort George as a military 

post. The small village had grown markedly in recent years as British loyalists relocated from the 

Boston area to this eastern outpost. More than 1,000 soldiers from the Massachusetts Militia 

mobilized the Penobscot Expedition in an effort to dislodge the British.   

 

Since approaches to the south and east sides of the Castine peninsula were blocked, the Americans 

landed on the shore between Dyce Head and Blockhouse Point, some of them scaling the heights 

now part of the Witherle Woods Preserve. The Colonial forces succeeded in gaining the heights and 

held that part of the peninsula after the British retreated to Fort George, but victory proved elusive. 

 

Despite being outnumbered, the British held the Fort and the American naval force retreated when 

British reinforcements arrived, destroying their fleet to keep it out of British hands. This costly 

defeat was arguably the worst naval disaster in U.S. history: it stranded crews in the relative wilds 

of eastern Maine (a 70-mile walk from Fort Western in Augusta) and virtually bankrupted 

Massachusetts (which had been the wealthiest colony before expending $9 million on the Penobscot 

Expedition).  

 

The British evacuated Castine in April 

1784, after peace was declared, but 

occupied it again in September 1814, 

nearing the end of the War of 1812, and 

built numerous defensive structures hoping 

to reestablish the Penobscot River as the 

border. Early maps indicate one 

blockhouse lay near the summit of 

Witherle Hill, and another at what is now 

ñBlockhouse Pointò overlooking the 

ñThe fleet consisted of nineteen armed vessels 

and twenty-four transports, carrying three 

hundred and forty-four guns.ò 
 

-- George Augustus Wheeler 

Castine Past and Present (1896) 

ñIf they exceeded the enemy somewhat in 

number, yet they were entirely 

undisciplinedé and were, consequently, not 

likely to be very reliable in an 

engagement.ò 

 

-- George Augustus Wheeler 

Castine Past and Present (1896) 



 

 
 

Penobscot River. There were also two semi-circular earthwork batteries along the steep bluff on 

either side of Blockhouse Point, confirmed by an archaeological survey done in 2001-2003 by Dr. 

Alaric Faulkner. Some of the depressions in the land still visible today may trace back to 

indentations from cannon fire or ñfox holesò dug during the Revolutionary War occupation.  

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

ñIn Witherle Park are to be found the remains of two small Revolutionary 

batteries and the site of an old block-house... Only the ledge on which the 

block-house stood can now be seen. This building was probably 

constructed more for an observatory than for the protection it would 

afford, though it was built in true block-house style. It was twenty-feet 

square on the ground floor, the second story projected over the first.ò 
 

-- George Augustus Wheeler 

Castine Past and Present (1896) 

   Network of trails in the area that became Witherle Park visible on the western side of the peninsula 

1889 Map of Castine 

 


